Select Board/Budget Committee
Joint Meeting
March 9, 2026
Town Office @ 4:30 PM
Virtual Meeting Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81038021289

Agenda
A. Call to Order Budget Committee Mtg

B. Approve Minutes
a. March 2, 2026

C. Official Action Items
a. Review Select Board Recommendations
i.  Operating Budget

1. Solid Waste 7. Hydrants

2. Contingency 8. Street Lights
3. Legal 9. Traffic Lights
4. Animal Control 10. Biscay Beach
5. Fire Department 11. Debt Service
6. Emergency Management

i. Capital Budget

D. Discussion ltems
a. MMA Article: Taxation Complexity

E. Adjourn


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81038021289
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1-SgyaKfssmTbY9OGE0YoL8ONTKIiTcCNzt5CZElX0O0/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1shKiCjpgGysGWgCL2Pbi8ST7NnXzyAi3/view?usp=drive_link
https://drive.google.com/file/d/19tgGb2mHlGYTYjBTRSlZUSvUTjYvEs58/view?usp=drive_link

Budget Committee
Meeting
March 2, 2026
Town Office @ 4:30 PM
Virtual Meeting Link: https.://us02web.zoom.us/i/81038021289

Minutes

Budget Committee: Richard McLean, Constance Magistrelli, Leah Puckey, Gary Rosenthal,
Bruce Rockwood, Larry Sidelinger, Jenny Begin (alternate), Susan McAlister (alternate), Karen
O’Bryan (via zoom), Mary Devlin (via zoom),Shari Sage (via zoom)

Others: Andrew Dorr, Town Manager; Lesley Wysocki, Deputy Clerk

A. Call to Order Budget Committee Mtg
McLean called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m.

There was initial discussion regarding which alternate member should vote, if needed.
As this option was not needed for tonight’s meeting, it was determined to discuss it at a
later time.

B. Approve Minutes

a.

~0oo0CT

November 19, 2025

December 3, 2025

January 28, 2026
February 9, 2026
February 10, 2026
February 11, 2026

Motion by Devlin to approve the minutes of November, 19, December 3, January 28,
February 9, February 10, and February 11 as presented.

Second by Rockwood

Vote: 9/0/0

C. Official Action Items

D. Discussion Iltems:

a.

Budget Review: Reflection/Observations

Dorr reminded members of the running question and answer document on-line
and encouraged requests to be made in a timely manner in order to allow time to
prepare or gather information prior to the meeting.

Magistrelli wanted to know what the initials CBA stood for. Dorr replied:
Collective Bargaining Agreement.


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81038021289
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1ZX0WuW04ODltYBC0D5OMJ-eFuTsO_NFzmitrQm4N670/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1pu1EkF-zMeSgQvPPB6KxHBDzrD-DST7oHla4Cn4iZaE/edit?usp=drive_link
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1PTz1LgZPGqy_6cw_iuptOPflqSmlwki19eqv_z-HC2k/edit?usp=drive_link
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1_IjVyt4C5R0w2IHa-yLGp-Ug25uSxKz-/edit?usp=drive_link&ouid=108691781056717339200&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1ljzTepzNPYvUgPnhmTuyy1s1rWYIO0vC/edit?usp=drive_link&ouid=108691781056717339200&rtpof=true&sd=true
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1tjIoKTVSF-wiP_JUb47pPtY6nAxYJK1LUr4qmFF0UHM/edit?usp=drive_link

Sidelinger asked why Damariscotta did not have a vote on the Jefferson-
Nobleboro Transfer station contract. Dorr replied that a two town “Council of
Governments” had been formed years ago and hasn’t been updated. Newcastle
and Damariscotta have both requested a seat at the table, but have not heard
back yet. Sidelinger stated, “since we pay so much money, we should have a
voice”. Dorr continued clarifying that this contract runs on a calendar year vs a
fiscal year. He is concerned that they may not be funding their capital needs
appropriately and if they need to take out a bond, that could be a problem for us.
Rockwood asked if there were any alternatives. McLean shared that they had
looked at having a transfer station in Damariscotta but it was voted down by the
community. Devlin shared that since we were already in the middle of the year,
perhaps the Damariscotta-Newcastle Public Works Committee could look at the
transfer station issue and possibly change it for future years. Magistrelli asked if
the issue was just the cost or were we unhappy with the service? Rockwood
suggested looking at other Town'’s fee structure and data as well.

Motion by Devlin that the Budget Committee recommends that the Select Board/
Dam-New Public Works Committee review the rate structure for trash disposal,
comparing it with Bristol and Boothbay and, if necessary, investigate alternatives
including partnering with the Bristol or Boothbay stations or develop a new site.
Second by O’Bryan

Vote: 8/0/1

Magistrelli commented that she knows people have done thoughtful work on this
budget proposal, but are the numbers presented absolutely needed? She also
acknowledged that the reserves have been underfunded for a long time and now
we need to catch up.

McLean stated that there are a number of expenses that are contracts which are
approved throughout the year and would like the Budget Committee to be notified
when a contract is on the Select Board’'s agenda for discussion or approval. Dorr
encouraged members to sign up on the web page to receive the agenda.

Puckey commented that we are spending money like “teenagers with their
daddy’s credit card” and doing nothing to cut the budget. The Select Board and
departments just keep spending. She believes every department should be
reduced.

There was conversation about the Police Department’s budget, in general, and
the need for a department, in particular. Rockwood shared there had been
discussions in 2013/2014 about whether or not to keep our own department and
if we would receive the same level of service from the Sheriff’s office for less
money. The community wanted their own department at that time. Begin added
there had been a desire of some people to discuss the future of a department
when Chief Warlick resigned and was disappointed that those conversations
didn’t happen. Dorr stated that the Town Charter states that a Police Department
exists and it would require a change to that, if that was the direction they wanted
to go in a future year. McAlister brought up the Comp Plan work and wondered
whether the town police department had come up during that in depth process.



Sage said she was offended by some of the comments being made and that
prices of everything are going up. She didn’t see a lot of unnecessary items
being purchased.

Devlin stated that it was not realistic to simply do a percent decrease to each
department, but rather, where can we create more revenue. (looking at fee
structures and creating new fees, etc.) Dorr responded that the fee structure is
on the Select Boards’ radar for review.

Sidelinger asked about where the billing for police services for pumpkinfest
appears, what percentage the patrol officers pay for health insurance, and when
can that be changed. Dorr responded that the fees for services are simply netted
out and officers pay approx. 5% of the monthly cost for their insurance per
contract. Their contract expires in June 2027. It could be changed but you'd end
up having to pay more in salary or something else for them to give up existing
benefits. Begin said health insurance is really driving everything and continued
by asking if there could be two budgets on the warrant for the police department.
Dorr replied that if the Budget Committee recommended one figure and the
Select Board another, that both would appear on the warrant. Sage commented
that we need to have competitive salaries to be competitive.

Magistrelli and Rosenthal each voiced concerns about the school budget. She
shared that there was an all-day workshop on March 25th on the school budget
and hoped that members would be more proactive; especially when it represents
% of peoples’ tax bill. McLean responded that the Budget Committee had no
control over the school budget and it was up to them if they would take any public
input at this point in their process.

Devlin said she appreciated these conversations, but for the sake of time, we
should move on and as we get to each department, we could have further
discussions.

Rosenthal left the meeting at 5:30 p.m.

MclLean encouraged the committee to move on.

Obligated/Contracted Expenses Review
i.  Statutatorily Obligated
ii. Town Charter Obligated
iii. Ordinance Obligations/Enforcement

Dorr pointed out the three documents which had been posted to the website and
printed copies were available for the meeting. Each shared various requirements
of the Town which provided a layer of the budget process. Members commented
that the documents were very helpful. If the community wanted to make changes
to the Town Charter or change ordinances, there were processes that would
have to be followed.


https://drive.google.com/file/d/1dWr6XT7mYp-SqLo5L2LDEoG-tplwGBWz/view?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1-d154j-L7KPjhnRAYZmrq1YodHB3Twh4oDVnynY1CxY/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1uN6ztbeT0WtXKLjKlESwn48slwT68o7xLGg85A7FElk/edit?usp=sharing

c. Select Board FY 27 Budget Progress as of 2/25/2026

McLean noted that the Select Board had voted on several items at their last
meeting, so this committee would have to come prepared to vote at the next
meeting. He agreed with some members that they needed to stick to the facts
presented in each line, since things could be debated forever. Sidelinger wanted
verification that the Select Board had recommended $186,705 for the fire
department. Dorr confirmed.

E. Adjourn

Motion by Rockwood to adjourn the meeting at 6:45 p.m.
Second by Puckey
Vote:8/0/0


https://drive.google.com/file/d/1klKRFC6GJRPTBlPDL-ImzC2RABBxQRun/view?usp=sharing

Operating Budget

General
Government

Police

Public Safety

Public Works

Community
Services/
Betterment

Admin

Assessing
Planning/Development
Solid Waste

Municipal Building
Contingency

Legal

Insurance

General Assistance

Police

ACO

Fire Dept

EMA

Hydrants

Street Lights
Traffic Lights
CLC Ambulance

Highway Dept
Street Lights
Traffic Lights
Cemetery Maint.
Biscay Beach

Community Services

Community Betterment
(Provider Agencies)
*via petition

2027 Budget

2023 Actual 2024 Actual 2025 Actual 2026 Budget 2026 YTD z'gizlies‘t’t 20§7ﬂ:\:|;r;aalger 2;’3;32:‘;‘ Cor;r:(i:ttee
$461,463.36  $508,206.16  $549,775.62  $614,810.00  $316,230.92  $646,263.00  $651,095.00 $0.00 $0.00
$27,006.80  $31,152.08  $36,573.04  $49,87500  $10,072.85  $48,565.00  $52,225.00 $0.00 $0.00
$81,543.96  $128,731.56  $140,427.76  $192,885.00  $104,039.01  $222,210.00  $228,990.00 $0.00 $0.00
$141,870.00  $145417.04  $183,265.76  $190,44500  $91,106.82  $211,950.00  $211,950.00  $211,950.00 $0.00
$50,828.76  $50,771.45  $79,997.36  $78470.00  $35851.53  $127,245.00  $117,430.00 $0.00 $0.00
$9,45442  $17,47456  $12,54469  $18,000.00 $5416.94  $20,000.00  $20,000.00  $20,000.00 $0.00
$1343350  $2423025  $21,350.00  $22,500.00 $2,850.00  $20,00000  $20,000.00  $20,000.00
$19,570.00  $16,817.76  $17,781.51  $1865500  $19,501.00  $20,675.00  $20,675.00 $0.00 $0.00
$ 243460 $ 297161 $ 340985 $  5000.00 - $ 500000 $ 500000 $ 500000 $ -
Total $807,605.40  $925772.47 $1,045125.60 $1,190,640.00  $585,069.07 $1,321,908.00 $1,327,365.00  $256,950.00 $0.00
$131,268.00  $136,725.00  -$933,690.00 -$1,190,640.00
11.02% 11.48% -78.42% -100.00%
$669,107.19  $730,186.86  $791,972.61  $907,000.00  $402,298.40  $994,600.00  $977,725.00 $0.00 $0.00
$87,600.00  $70,725.00 -$907,000.00  -$907,000.00
9.66% 7.80% -100.00% -100.00%
$7,959.22 $6,940.42 $8,415.96 $7,850.00 $7,120.09  $11,055.00  $11,05500  $11,055.00 $0.00
$141,68556  $159451.28  $139,612.18  $181,693.00  $74,327.67  $186,703.00  $186,705.00  $186,705.00 $0.00
$1,879.56 $2,380.40 $2,390.64 $2,780.00 $1,004.34 $3,040.00 $3,040.00 $3,040.00 $0.00
$138466.24  $138466.24  $164,610.34  $227,00000  $89,083.30  $246,20500  $246,205.00  $246,205.00 $0.00
$6,338.31 $6,860.79 $7,341.45 $6,000.00 $4,205.94 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$660.85 $2,321.39 $2,794.11 $2,700.00 $700.63 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
$152,925.00  $90,765.36  $99,027.01  $106,280.00  $106,279.87  $97,355.00  $97,35500  $97,355.00
Total  $44991474  $407,185.88  $424,191.69  $534,303.00  $282,820.84  $544358.00  $544,360.00  $544,360.00 $0.00
$10,055.00  $10,057.00  $10,057.00  -$534,303.00
1.88% 1.88% 1.88% -100.00%
$ 469,696.85 $ 524,661.14 $ 738,662.85 $ 817,580.00 $ 34211716 §$ 839,920.00 $ 831,270.00 $ - $ -
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  $13,200.00 $8,200.00 $8,200.00 $0.00
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,200.00 $4,200.00 $4,200.00 $0.00
$39,739.55  $73,863.07  $49,119.35  $63,090.00  $29273.71  $66,42500  $66,425.00 $0.00 $0.00
$738.44 $800.00 $1,140.00 $1,400.00 $1,540.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $0.00
Total $ 510,174.84  $599,324.21  $788922.20  $882,070.00  $372,930.87  $926,345.00  $911,69500  $14,000.00 $0.00
$44,275.00  $29.62500 -$868,070.00  -$882,070.00
5.02% 3.36% -98.41% -100.00%
$3,263.46 $2,529.07 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
$78,828.00  $86,874.00  $72,665.00  $95452.05  $95452.05  $55,164.00




2027 Budget

Operating Budget 2023 Actual 2024 Actual 2025 Actual 2026 Budget 2026 YTD 2327 Dept 2027 Manager 2027 Select "¢\ 1 it100
equest Proposal Board Rec Rec

Total $82,091.46 $89,403.07 $75,165.00 $97,952.05 $95,452.05 $58,164.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

-$39,788.05 -$94,952.05 -$97,952.05 -$97,952.05

-40.62% -96.94% -100.00% -100.00%
. Road Repair 2022 $191,132.72 $191,132.72 $191,132.72 $191,130.00 $191,132.72 $191,135.00 $191,135.00 $191,135.00

Debt Service -

Streetlights $10,842.28 $10,842.28 $10,842.28 $10,845.00 $10,851.52 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $201,975.00 $201,975.00 $201,975.00 $201,975.00 $201,984.24 $191,135.00 $191,135.00 $191,135.00 $0.00

-$10,840.00 -$10,840.00 -$10,840.00  -$201,975.00

-0.91% -0.91% -5.37% -100.00%

Subtotal Operating Budget $2,720,868.63 $2,953,847.49 $3,327,352.10 $3,813,940.05 $1,940,555.47 $4,036,510.00 $3,955,280.00 $1,006,445.00 $0.00

$222,569.95 $141,339.95 -$2,807,495.05 -$3,813,940.05

5.84% 3.71% -73.61% -100.00%

Capital Reserves 2023 Actual 2024 Actual 2025 Actual 2026 Budget 2026 YTD 2327 om | ARy | A S zgifn?n‘iﬁﬂit
equest Proposal Board Rec Rec

Municipal Building $12,600.00 $25,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $50,000.00 $50,000.00 $40,000.00
Fire Station $90,000.00 $87,500.00 $50,000.00 $60,000.00 $60,000.00 $120,000.00 $150,000.00 $142,500.00
Highway Facilities $0.00 $25,000.00 $50,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00 $150,000.00 $100,000.00 $95,000.00
Waterfront Project $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Fire Truck $85,000.00 $80,000.00 $100,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $185,000.00 $110,000.00 $110,000.00
Fire Equipment $2,000.00 $14,000.00 $15,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 $11,000.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00
Police Vehicle $12,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $45,000.00 $45,000.00 $35,000.00
Highway Truck $10,000.00 $20,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $33,250.00
Highway Equipment $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $25,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $35,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
Sidewalk $0.00 $40,000.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $70,000.00 $150,000.00 $100,000.00 $100,000.00
Paving $108,000.00 $125,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $250,000.00 $200,000.00 $200,000.00
Parking Lot $2,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Church Street $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Bicycle Infrastructure $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Technology $4,000.00 $17,000.00 $7,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
Comprehensive Plan $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Cemetery Reserve $23,500.00 $12,500.00 $25,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00
Landfill $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Town Clock $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Biscay Beach $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Property Revaluation $60,000.00 $20,000.00 $15,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
Payroll Liability $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Pension Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Back Parking Lot Restrooms $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Dollar General Sidewalk $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00




2027 Budget

Operating Budget 2023 Actual 2024 Actual 2025 Actual 2026 Budget 2026 YTD ARG el LERERR | A PIAUIEES | i
Request Proposal Board Rec Rec
Bristol Rd $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Subtotal Capital Reserve  $424,100.00  $515,000.00  $630,000.00  $751,000.00  $751,000.00 $1,086,000.00  $876,000.00  $841,750.00 $0.00
$335,000.00  $125,000.00  $90,750.00  -$751,000.00
44.61% 16.64% 12.08% -100.00%
Total Town Budget $3,144,968.63 $3,468,847.49 $3,957,352.10 $4,564,940.05 $2,691,555.47 $5,122,510.00 $4,831,280.00 $1,848,195.00 $0.00
$557,569.95  $266,339.95
12.21% 5.83% -59.51% -100.00%
Fees/Reimbursements/Etc $706,421.87 $1,104,970.39  $963,779.04  $729,680.00  $549,323.68  $861,602.00  $810,830.00 $0.00 $0.00
Revenue $131,922.00  $81,150.00 -$666,755.00 -$666,755.00
18.08% 11.12% -100.00% -100.00%
Undesianated UFB Appropriation $150,000.00  $150,000.00  $150,000.00  $150,000.00  $150,000.00  $91,985.00  $105,995.00 $0.00
ndesignate R . . -
Fund Balance $58,015.00  -$44,005.00 -$150,000.00  -$150,000.00
-38.68% -29.34% -22.50% -22.50%
Local Road LRAP Allocation $21,408.00  $24,688.00  $25,000.00  $24,500.00  $28,344.00  $28,000.00  $28,000.00
Assistance $3,500.00 $3,500.00  -$24,500.00  -$24,500.00
Program (LRAP) 2.33% 2.33% -3.67% -3.67%
Property Tax $2,267,138.76  $2,189,189.10 $2,818,573.06 $3,660,760.05 $1,963,887.79 $4,140,923.00 $3,886,455.00 $1,848,195.00 $0.00
;:"IZ‘;%T“ $480,162.95  $225,694.95 -$1,812,565.05 -$3,660,760.05
13.12% 6.17% -49.51% -100.00%

Amended 3/6/2026




e feature sas

A task force looking at current conditions regard-
ing property tax relief—including the desire to keep
Maine people in their homes—has focused largely on
learning about how property taxes are determined,
how they are used and who needs to be supported.

A legislative resolve that went into effect in July
2025 set the stage for a Real Estate Property Tax Relief
Task Force, a group of 13 voting members with different
areas of expertise and backgrounds, given the imper-
ative to look at existing property tax relief measures
to help the state with its desire to “deliver immediate
property tax relief and launch a comprehensive, da-
ta-driven process to develop long-term solutions .. .”

In late January, as the task force was dealing with
final edits on an interim report, Sen. Nicole Grohoski,
representing municipalities in Hancock County as well
as Isle au Haut in Knox County, who is co-chair of the
task force and the Taxation Committee, talked about
the progress: “So far, much education has taken place.
Property taxes are complex and they are intertwined
with the ways we fund state services and local ser-
vices. There are a lot of threads you can follow, and we
wanted to make sure everyone had the same ground-
ing on property taxation: How does assessing work?
What does the state pay for? What are the municipal-
ities tasked with funding themselves? What relief pro-
grams do we have?”

Now that the investigative phase is wrapping up,
she said, “We have a lot more work to do to make
recommendations that will have lasting effect. The
interim report has identified that we have the gold
standard for property tax relief programs: the Prop-
erty Tax Fairness Credit, the Homestead Exemption
and the Property Tax Deferral programs. This is what
we learned from national experts. | think one of the
questions the task force now poses to the Taxation
Committee is ‘We've got the right programs; are there
any changes you want to make in the near term?”

She noted that the task force has recommended

About the Author: Betty Adams is a freelance writer from
Sidney and regular contributor to Maine Town & City.

adamsbettyOO@gmail.com

that the deferral program “is the most targeted and
might be a place for investment but the others are
also ripe for additional enhancement.”

Gov. Janet Mills also referenced that program when
mentioning tax savings in her State of the State
speech on Jan. 27, 2026, saying, “[/If you are a senior
citizen, you might qualify for property tax relief of up
to $2,000 through our Property Tax Fairness Credit,
and your pension itself might well be exempt from in-
come taxes.”

Additionally, a separate state program allows cer-
tain individuals to defer paying property taxes on
their homestead; some municipalities also offer prop-
erty tax deferral programs.

Grohoski said the next task is looking into what
drives costs for municipalities that taxpayers fund:
“The goal here is to find not only short-term relief that
can help [offset] costs people are having now but to
think about what we can do differently so we don't
have to keep addressing this whenever we're in these
economic periods where there are sharp increases in
costs.”

A draft report prepared for the Dec. 16, 2025, task
force meeting outlines part of the problem: “During
the pandemic, residential property values rose, and
commercial property values decreased.” It goes on
to say, “The fair market value of Maine homes, which
is the base on which property taxes are assessed,
has risen dramatically over the last five years, post-
COVID—two to three times faster than the incomes of
most Maine households. The median home sale price
in Maine, according to data from the Maine Associa-
tion of Realtors, rose from $225,000 in 2019 to $390,200
in 2024—an increase of 73% in just 5 years.”

Lewis Cousins, an assessor for the City of Presque
Isle, presented information about assessing to the
task force at a Sept. 30 meeting.

In a later interview, Cousins, who is also vice president
and co-treasurer of the Maine Association of Assessing
Officers, said, “The task force has a monumental job in
front of them to try to find a way to provide relief. The
message | tried to give was to be careful not to simply

FEBRUARY 2026 | MAINETOWN & CITY | 9



shift the tax burden from one group to another and
that’s what happens when we provide an exemption to
a certain group of people.”

He offered an example using the homestead ex-
emption: “Those people that qualify for the home-
stead do receive a benefit, but the cost of city services
doesn’t change, so the burden of the taxes is shift-
ed to businesses and landowners and other people
who don't qualify for that exemption. It’s very simple.
You're not making the burden that taxation has to
cover go away. What | tried to suggest—and it may be
impossible—is to find a way to reduce the costs mu-
nicipalities have to endure.”

Presque Isle is also the base of the Aroostook Re-
gional Assessing Office (ARAO) which provides ser-
vices to Madawaska, New Canada, Cyr Plantation,
New Sweden, Portage Lake, Garfield Plantation, Mars
Hill, Hodgdon and Amity.

Rep. Robert Nutting, who represents Oakland, Mer-
cer, Smithfield, Starks and part of Sidney, said in an
interview that he wanted the task force to avoid get-
ting side-tracked. “What we’re trying to do is get some
fairly immediate relief to property taxpayers. The ob-
vious places to look are the Homestead Exemption
Program and the Proper-
ty Tax Fairness Credit.”

He talked about the
high costs to county gov-
ernments of funding jails
and law enforcement:
“They’re mandated by the
state to do lots of things,
but the state has reneged
on providing them with
the funding that they
deserve. As a result, instead of being paid for with a
combination of income tax or sales tax and every oth-
er tax that the state has access to, it becomes a prop-
erty tax issue.” He noted that several county sheriffs
are seeking to have regional jail facilities to cut costs.

“We’'re looking at two things: the property tax relief,
and if we can do something about the county, that
would be great,” he said. “At the end of the day, the
people who vote control the property taxes. They get
to vote on the municipal budget, they get to vote on
the school budget, what they don’t get to vote on is
the county budget.”

He too referenced the pandemic and the influx of
individuals seeking an escape to rural Maine as one
of the factors causing the property tax crisis.

Robert Nutting

10 | MAINETOWN & CITY | FEBRUARY 2026

Nutting, who is in his 20th year as a state legislator,
also offers a municipal perspective as a member of
the Oakland Town Council.

He too said the hard work for the task force will
take place in the next four to six meetings. “To have
any appreciable impact on property taxpayers there
have to be some difficult decisions made. In one of
the first couple of meetings, people who worked for
Maine Revenue Service pointed out—rightfully so—
that the state already does a lot in helping with prop-
erty tax, but | think we’re going to find out that they’re
not doing enough to please residents, but we'll see.”

Nutting added, “I'm looking forward to what we’ll
end up doing. If they decide non-profit and educa-
tional facilities have to pay property tax, | will be sur-
prised.”

Task Force member Dick Woodbury, an economist
and former state senator from Cumberland County, at
the Sept. 30, 2025 meeting, said, “Spending and taxes
are two sides of the same coin,” and asked, “Are we
apportioning the burden not as well as we could?” He
said that a quick calculation shows the state spends
$2.2 billion a year on property tax relief.

Bangor City Manager Carollynn Lear, the task force
member representing communities with at least 10,000
population, said that her role includes helping fellow
task force members under-
stand the role of service cen-
ter communities. Some 33.9%
of property in Bangor is ex-
empt from taxes according
to data from Maine Revenue
Services. A sample of other
service center communities
shows a high percentage of
tax exempt property as well:
Waterville, 32.4%, Augusta,
25.8%, and Lewiston, 23.2%.

She noted that nontax-
able properties drive a high-
er use of city services, including police, fire and public
health and pushed to have information about that
included in the task force’s interim report: “The propor-
tion of service center municipalities that is nontaxable
property, for example, is a huge component of why it is
uniquely challenging to be a service center community
in a world where your primary revenue stream is prop-
erty taxes.”

Lear, an attorney and a native of Belfast, Maine,
began her chief administrative role in Bangor in June

Carollynn Lear



2025 after a career in taxes, including 10 years as dep-
uty commissioner in the New Hampshire Department
of Revenue Administration, and most recently three
years with the IRS in the Office of Taxpayer Advocate.

Lear noted that New Hampshire's property tax
rates are much higher than Maine’s, but that reflects
the absence of an income tax as well as a sales tax on
goods purchased in the Granite State.

She said the task force meetings offered valuable
information from individuals in the Property Tax Divi-
sion of Maine Revenue Services about how the state
operates with regard to assessment and its property
tax relief programs.

“In reality, our whole web of state, federal and local
taxes as well as numerous other economic factors is
what is making home ownership and property taxes
unaffordable for taxpayers,” she said. “With that in
mind, | actually think that one of the more valuable
things our committee could do for our policymakers is
to really narrow and identify what the true challenges
are and whether those challenges are in fact driven by
property taxes or more generally driven by economic
factors.”

She continued, “One thing | would highlight that |
think is really unique about Maine and a place that
the committee didn’t explore but really needs to, is
the fact that Maine has the highest proportion of
non-owner occupied homes in the country. That’s driv-
en by the fact that people own second and vacation
homes here.

“On the one hand you can talk about the benefit
of that in that those part-time owners probably don’t
require the same level of local and state services as
full-time owners, but at the same time, | think those
property owners uniquely drive values in a way that
impacts full-time residents. That's a place where it
would behoove the committee to spend some time
evaluating whether there’s anything creative to be
done to address the impact of our high proportion of
second homeowners or nonresident homeowners.”

Stonington Town Manager Kathleen Billings, who
has held that post for more than 20 years, is the task
force member representing municipalities with few-
er than 10,000 residents. She started as town clerk in
1997-98.

The picturesque coastal town featured in the Oc-
tober 2025 issue of Maine Town & City, attracts lots of
visitors in the warmer months, but some year-round
residents—particularly the young and senior citi-
zens—are being priced out of the housing market.

At the task force’s Sept. 30, 2025 meeting, Billings
commented that a number of long-term residents
are having to leave the
town because they can
no longer afford to live
there. She said hous-
es along the coast and
even inland homes were
purchased by people
from out of state, and
that median house pric-
es have hit $400,000-
$600,000.

“The have and the have-not divide is substantial,”
she said in an interview in late January. “The home-
stead exemption, started 20-25 years ago, is still at
$25,000. That’s nothing when the house has appreci-
ated so much in value.” She would like the homestead
exemption set at not less than $100,000.

She offered an illustration of the change, saying
that the Stonington Water Company, which is a town
department, supplies water to 270 customers and al-
most all are shut off in the winter because the homes
are closed up: “It’s literally an empty Main Street;
it’s lost that vitality. The owners are only here for six
months because they don’t want to pay income tax.”

She added that she finds it difficult to pay enough
to keep staff in the town office, and that they provide
a significant benefit to the state, particularly through
issuing the various hunting and fishing licenses, and
boat and motor vehicle registrations. “It’s not sustain-
able to keep doing this,” she added.

She would like to see some changes: an increase in
agent fees for the towns and more webinars offered
for training staff so the town office isn’t short-staffed
while individuals are attending training elsewhere.

In a Maine Municipal Association Potholes & Poli-
tics podcast aired on Nov. 25, 2025, task force mem-
ber Nick Cloutier, current Waterville city manager and
most recently assessor and director of special projects
for the Town of Scarborough, summarized points he
shared with the task force.

Inthe short-term, he listed potential relief for home-
owners, especially individuals with lower incomes and
seniors, and targeting “individuals who are really feel-
ing the crunch” through existing programs, including
the property tax fairness credit.

For the midterm and longer term, he said he ex-
pected the task force’s final report to look at the root
of the problem and perhaps suggest a tiered mil rate

Kathleen Billings

FEBRUARY 2026 | MAINETOWN & CITY | T1



or different rates for primary residences versus second
homes, etc.

He noted that some people have suggested ex-
panding the sales tax to more goods or providing
more opportunities for municipalities to impose a lo-
cal sales tax to bring in more revenue.

The task force has requested permission to have
more meetings than provided for in the enabling leg-
islation, and Grohoski expected that to be approved.

“When we reconvene probably in May, we'll be in-
terested to see what actions the Legislature takes not
just in the tax arena but in education and criminal
justice. What did those reports recommend and do we
feel we want to pick up the ball on any of those things
because they are related? We also know we could
spend all of our time just on education funding, and
we have to be more broad than that.”

She also praised the data analysis work of the
Progress & Poverty Institute, a contractor which has
worked on property tax issues in other states and is
doing research and providing analytical support ma-
terials for Maine’s Real Estate Property Tax Relief Task
Force.

“They have in a very short time put together a lot of
information that will help us answer questions.” She

@ MainePERS

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

MainePERS partners
with public employers
to deliver retirement

and related services.

For more information
about MainePERS plans
please visit www.mainepers.org
or call us at 1-800-451-9800.

12 | MAINETOWN & CITY | FEBRUARY 2026

gave a few examples of those questions: “If you can
appropriate another $50 million for property tax re-
lief, how do you put that in a program to make sure
it’s helping the people that are struggling the most?
How do we make sure that property taxes aren’t ad-
versely affecting renters? That'’s one of the really good
things about our property tax fairness credit. It is one
of the things that actually helps renters as well as
homeowners and that is not as common, but certainly
property taxes affect anyone that has a home.”

The resolve that created the task force notes that
“no later than December 15, 2026, the task force shall
submit a final report that includes its findings and
recommendations, including suggested legislation,
to the [Taxation Committee] which may report out
legislation to the 133rd Legislature in 2027 based on
the report.” Grohoski and task force co-chair Rep. Ann
Matlack, who represents Cushing, St. George, South
Thomaston, Thomaston and part of Owls Head will
present that report. Grohoski said all task force com-
mittee members will be invited to attend as well.

Videos of task force meetings, the completed inter-
im report and other documents are posted online at
https://legislature.maine.gov/real-estate-property-
tax-relief-task-force. sk

Allin on Maine.,

SPECIALIZING IN THE UNIQUE
NEEDS OF MAINE MUNICIPALITIES:

+ 100% financing for Maine municipalities

+ Fixed-rate leasing programs for new or
used equipment

+ A streamlined application process—
you'll be up and running in no time

+ Plus, a full suite of cash management
products catered to municipalities

Learn more at maine.bank/leasing
or call Rick Proctor at 207-222-1498.

©)MEB

MCB Leasing, LLC is an affiliate of Maine Community Bank. MEMBER




sum SEYIES musn

The Complexity of Funding Public Education

The finale.

By Rebecca Lambert / Municipal Issues Specialist

Through passage of LD 2286 in April of 2024, the
Maine Educational Policy Research Institute (MEPRI)
was directed to conduct a targeted review of how
public education is financed in Maine, including ex-
amining the components of the Essential Programs
and Services (EPS) funding formula. Articles pub-
lished in the October and November 2025 and Janu-
ary 2026 editions of the Maine Town & City, outlined
the components of the EPS formula and highlighted
key data trends, explored regional cost variations
and the impact of special education expenses within
the EPS formula, and examined how Maine finances
public education, the sharing of costs between the
State and property taxpayers, and the effectiveness
of the current EPS funding model.

The final segment in this series relies on artificial
intelligence and human resources to summarize the
200-page report’s most critical findings.

General Background and Trends

While expectations for public education in Maine
have expanded, funding models have not kept pace
with changing needs or inflation. Since EPS’s intro-
duction in 2005, per-pupil spending has grown sig-
nificantly, even as student enrollment declined by
19%. This contrast highlights a clear paradox, as many
districts are now spending more to educate fewer
students. Two spending categories, special educa-
tion and student/staff support, have seen the most
growth, rising 141% and 174% respectively between
2001 and 2021—far outpacing inflation.

Stakeholder feedback also revealed a lack of con-
sensus regarding the provision of an “adequate” ed-
ucation. Communities interpret “essential services”
differently, leading to wide disparities in educational
opportunities.

Economies of scale also contribute to the chronic
underfunding of school programs. Communities often
resist school closures, leading to structural inefficien-
cies in the system. One solution would be to support
small schools through alternative funding models or
by using multi-year enrollment averaging. Another

solution would encourage consolidation with stricter
funding guidelines and prioritization of merged infra-
structure.

State Funding, Local Ability to Pay, and
Property Valuation

Maine’s education funding system relies heavily
on property taxes, which contributes to inequities
across districts and taxpayers. According to the study,
Maine ranks first in property tax as a percentage of
available revenue, third in reliance on property taxes
for funding state and local programs, and seventh in
per capita property tax burden.

Recent surges in residential property values, espe-
cially post-pandemic, have shifted more of the edu-
cation funding burden onto homeowners, exacerbat-
ing voter resistance to school budgets.

Additionally, when considering property valuation
versus income disparity, the formula is flawed. The
system assumes property value reflects ability to
pay. However, nearly 13% of town and cities’ residents
have low or average incomes but high EPS-relat-
ed tax burdens, suggesting that some residents are
overburdened relative to their means.

Recommended solutions to overcome these chal-
lenges include incorporating income into the EPS for-
mula in addition to property assessment, targeting
relief to low-income property owners regardless of
the community, and revisiting minimum contributor
adjustments.

Regional Cost Variation

The study also brought to light that the EPS re-
gional adjustment, meant to account for local labor
market differences, is outdated and ineffective, as ev-
idenced by growing salary gaps. The regional index
still relies on 2004-2005 salary data, which no lon-
ger reflects actual regional differences. This practice
undermines the model’s goal to fairly fund districts
based on real labor costs.

MEPRI recommends updating the index using either
recent teacher salary data or cost-of-living indices to

FEBRUARY 2026 | MAINETOWN & CITY | 13



establish funding formula provisions that ensure min-
imum support in low-wage areas. The report also rec-
ommends implementing periodic updates to keep the
formula responsive to market changes.

Special Education Funding

Special education funding is complex, and Maine’s
current special education funding model is both in-
equitable and inadequate. Several issues were iden-
tified, including the overidentification of students, as
Maine’s special education identification rate (20%) is
well above the national average (15%). Additionally,
the funding model, described as being largely reac-
tive, means schools with higher past expenditures
receive more future funding.

Possible remedies include developing a tiered
funding model based on student needs rather than
expenditures, promoting the regionalization of ser-
vices to manage costs and improve quality of ser-
vices, moderating growth maintenance of effort ad-
justments to prevent budget inflation, and revisiting
hardship funding rules to better assist districts facing
unexpected high-cost placements.

Policy Considerations Summary and
Next Steps

In terms of policy considerations, this study under-
scores several fundamental questions for current and
future lawmakers to explore as they consider amend-
ments to the models and formulas used to fund kin-
dergarten to grade 12 education. As the state looks
to implement findings from this study, MEPRI advises
greater transparency in EPS cost assumptions, more
explicit definitions of educational adequacy, engage-
ment with tax policy experts, a shared vision of equi-
ty for students and taxpayers alike, and a phased im-
plementation of major funding reforms to minimize
disruption.

What has become clear is that Maine’s education
system is at a crossroads.

The EPS funding formula, once a bold step toward
equity, now struggles under outdated assumptions
and a rapidly changing social and economic land-
scape. By embracing the recommendations made by
professional researchers in this report, policymakers
have a basis to modernize school funding in a way
that ensures both fairness and effectiveness for the
next generation of students. 'y

Cameron Ferrante
cferrante@preti.com

PROBLEMS,
SOLVED

Kristin Collins
kcollins@preti.com

] : "
’
Gray Louis
glouis@preti.com

V7

Lot

Our Municipal Law and Finance Group
is committed to creative approaches,
practical solutions, and positive outcomes
for our clients and our communities.

LEARN MORE AT PRETI.COM | PretiFlaherty

14 | MAINETOWN & CITY | FEBRUARY 2026




